# **Public Document Pack**

Date of Wednesday, 5th April, 2017

meetina

**Time** 6.30 pm

Venue Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, Merrial Street, Newcastle-

under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG

Contact Jayne Briscoe 2250



Civic Offices **Merrial Street** Newcastle-under-Lyme Staffordshire ST5 2AG

# **Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee**

# AGENDA

#### PART 1 – OPEN AGENDA

- 1 **Apologies**
- 2 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

To receive declarations of interest from Members on items included in this agenda

3 **MINUTES OF A PREVIOUS MEETING** (Pages 3 - 6)

To agree as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting(s)

+Draft Report - Borough Market (Pages 7 - 52) 4

5 **Business Helpline Draft Report** (Pages 53 - 56)

6 **PUBLIC QUESTION TIME** 

> Any member of the public wishing to submit a question must serve two clear days' notice, in writing, of any such question to the Borough Council.

7 **URGENT BUSINESS** 

> To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972

**DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION** 8



Working to be a co-operative council

**Resolved:-** That the public be excluded from the meeting during

consideration if the following matter because it is likely that there will be disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972

9 BID Information (Pages 57 - 58)

10 Tender Document (Pages 59 - 64)

11 Date of next meeting - 24 May 2017

Members: Councillors Bailey, Dymond, Gardner (Chair), Holland, Huckfield, Loades,

Matthews, Northcott, Owen, Snell and G Williams (Vice-Chair)

PLEASE NOTE: The Council Chamber and Committee Room 1 are fitted with a loop system. In addition, there is a volume button on the base of the microphones. A portable loop system is available for all other rooms. Should you require this service, please contact Member Services during the afternoon prior to the meeting.

Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of the items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting.

Meeting Quorums: - 16+= 5 Members; 10-15=4 Members; 5-9=3 Members; 5 or less = 2 Members.

FIELD\_TITLE

Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items.

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee - 30/11/16

#### **ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND ENTERPRISE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE**

Wednesday, 30th November, 2016 Time of Commencement: 6.30 pm

**Present:-** Councillor Allison Gardner – in the Chair

Councillors Bailey, Holland, Matthews, Northcott,

Turner (Portfolio Holder for Finance, IT and Customer), G Williams and J Williams (Portfolio Holder for Town Centres, Property and Business)

Officers Jayne Briscoe - Scrutiny Officer, Elaine

Burgess - Markets and Regeneration Officer, Kim Graham - Regeneration and Economic Development Manager and Jo

Halliday - Head of Housing, Regeneration and Assets

Apologies Councillor(s) Dymond, Proctor and Snell

Also in Matt Taylor, BID Manager

Attendance

## 1. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest stated.

#### 2. MINUTES OF A PREVIOUS MEETING

**Resolved:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September

be agreed as a correct record.

Councillor Holland asked if there had been any progress in relation to the report regarding the impact on highways of planning developments across the Borough and the A34 traffic policy developed by Staffordshire County Council. Councillor Holland agreed to follow this matter up with Councillor Loades.

With regard to the Business Helpline report the Regeneration and Economic Development Manager it agreed that rather than data on the skills base of the Newcastle area it would be more achievable to include

a district profile in the final report.

#### 3. PRESENTATION ON THE MARKETS WEBSITE

The Markets and Regeneration officer, Elaine Burgess, gave a presentation on the markets website. Members viewed the customer facing content, which was part of

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

#### Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

#### Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee - 30/11/16

the BID website. The BID website had a link to the Council website which contained information on how to reserve a stall. Continuing the Markets and Regeneration officer explained about the information on Town Centre App, which was available to download.

Responding to questions from members Matt Taylor, manager of the BID team explained how the website was marketed. The BID website also had a high visibility on the google search engine and an active content of news and deals.

Councillor Turner, as Portfolio Holder for Finance, IT and Customer spoke to the Committee in relation to the digital revolution which was evolving within the authority. He explained that, as from 1<sup>st</sup> January 2017, the authority would no longer handle cash. He suggested that the market traders be incentivised to move to cashless payments, especially as the Town anticipated an increase in the student population and younger people had a tendency not to carry cash. In this respect the Chair referred to the potential costs to the trader of operating a cashless system and the Manager of the BID team stated that the BID would be offering a free training session for traders to learn about low cost cashless payments.

Councillor Turner suggested that there should be the facility online to register, book a stall and that discounts could be offered if the booking was for a 6 month period or longer. This facility should be as user friendly as possible.

Members thanked the Markets and Regeneration Officer for her presentation.

#### 4. DISCUSSION WITH THE BID MANAGER - BOROUGH MARKET

The BID Manager explained that, in respect of the Borough Market, although it was operated by the Council the BID felt that it was a partner and wished to help ensure the success of this important part of the economic and social aspect of the Town. He added that this was the first time the BID had been approached to give a view and he welcomed the opportunity.

The BID team worked to promote the market and its activities, such as Trade for a Tenner which had been promoted via social media.

The Bid team manager reported that the artisan market operator at the Christmas lights switch on was keen to return to the Town and to make it a regular feature.

In response to a question from a member Matt Taylor explained that the BID team carried out outreach work including giveaways and discounts at Keele University to encourage the student population to shop in the town.

Councillor J Williams, as Portfolio holder for Town Centres, Property and Business hoped that the artisan market could be linked to the traditional market and that the traditional market stalls could be reconfigured to give a more vibrant feel.

The Regeneration and Economic Development Manager suggested that new businesses such as the haberdashery in Barracks Road could have stall signposting customers to their premises and giving an example of their offering within the Barracks.

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee - 30/11/16

Agreed - That the Markets and Regeneration Manager and the BID Manager engage in a semi-structured interview to develop ideas and ways to take these forward.

#### **BUSINESS HELPLINE - PENULTIMATE REPORT** 5.

The Regeneration and Economic Development Manager presented this report which examined the use of the business helpline by Newcastle businesses.

In response to the request of the Scrutiny Committee a meeting had been arranged with the Business Helpline Advisor to discuss the current uptake of the service and explore options for improvement.

The performance report showed that 52 Newcastle businesses accessed the Business Helpline which was 5 more than other Staffordshire authorities and less than 2 Staffordshire Authorities. This indicated that improvements could be made and the options to help Newcastle businesses to access the helpline were set out in the report.

It was noted that the suggested initiatives would not result in additional financial cost to the authority but that more officer time would be needed to implement the suggested improvements areas.

During a discussion relating to resources a member pointed out that an economic development officer spent almost a third of the working time available in Kidsgrove. Continuing the Chair asked whether at a point in time Go Kidsgrove would become self-sufficient in terms of officer time? The Head of Housing, Regeneration and Assets suggested that the appropriate time to examine this issue was during the next 12 months alongside the review of development strategy.

Members were supportive of this review of officer time, especially as local councils became more dependent upon business rates.

#### 6 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR ON SCRUTINY WORK CARRIED OUT TO DATE

At this point in the meeting the Portfolio Holder for Town Centres, Property and Business, Councillor John Williams presented the Action Plan 2016 for Go Kidsgrove and members reviewed progress against the plan.

The report was received and members were pleased with the positive developments.

#### Borough Market

The Chair gave an update on the scrutiny work carried out to date on the development of the Borough Market.

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

#### Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

#### Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee - 30/11/16

It was agreed that:-

- A survey of market traders and shoppers be carried out (Councillor Northcott and G Williams to help facilitate on 12 December)
- A walkabout be carried out to include members and partners (Scrutiny Officer to co-ordinate)
- The BID manager be asked to offer input regarding the most cost effective way for market traders to offer cashless payments to customers.
- That a change management company be invited to a future meeting of this scrutiny committee together with the markets supervisors.

It was agreed that an extra meeting of the scrutiny committee would be held in February, prior to the scheduled 15 March meeting. At the March meeting an interim report on the Borough market would be considered together with an update report on Growth Deal 3 (if this was available). A final report on the Borough Market would be presented to a meeting of the Committee in April for final sign off prior to submission to Cabinet.

#### 7. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no members of the public present.

#### 8. **URGENT BUSINESS**

There was no Urgent Business.

#### 9. **DATE OF NEXT MEETING**

This Committee will meet next in February on a date to be agreed.

# COUNCILLOR ALLISON GARDNER Chair

Meeting concluded at 8.05 pm

Classification: NULBC **UNCLASSIFIED**Page 6

4

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

**Document is Restricted** 



#### **MEETING BEING SUBMITTED TO Cabinet**

#### MANAGEMENT OPTIONS FOR NEWCASTLE MARKET

**Submitted by: Assets Manager** 

Portfolio: Town Centres, Property & Business

Ward(s) affected: Town

#### **Purpose of the Report**

To set out options for the future management of the town centre market and seek a Cabinet decision on the preferred option.

#### Recommendations

- (a) That Members agree to an external partner being sought to operate and manage the Council's town centre Markets and that officers be authorised to prepare a tender pack at the earliest opportunity and to take all the necessary steps to procure such an operator.
- (b) That officers be authorised to prepare an outcome-based specification for the service in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) taking account of the views of the Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee.
- (c) That the results of this tendering exercise be reported back to a future meeting of Cabinet with a view to appointing an external market operator for Newcastle town centre market as soon as practically possible.

#### Reasons

To enhance the prospects of achieving an improved and sustainable town centre market by creating the opportunity for a specialist market operator to revitalise this key part of the town centre economy. In addition it would enable the Council to reduce the direct cost of running the town centre market as well as transferring the associated risks.

#### 1. Background

- 1.1 The operation of an effective and attractive market is an important issue for the economic vitality of the town centre and also for the Council in terms of management of the asset. Following the Council's significant investment in the new market stalls and pedestrianisation of Hassell Street (completed in September 2014) it is now appropriate that the Council reviews the operation and management of the market.
- 1.2 Markets are a retail function and, like many other retail functions, they have experienced structural change arising from changes in customers' shopping habits and preferences; notably such changes have meant a general move away from the traditional High Street offer. Evidence from a national survey (undertaken in 2015) demonstrates that market traders are an ageing group and there is a lack of new and younger traders entering the sector. The survey found that over 70% of traders are aged over 50 and only 11% are aged below 40; Newcastle's market traders are consistent with this national trend.

Page 47

Classification: NULBC **PROTECT** Organisational

1.3 Following the refurbishment project the performance of the market, in terms of both stall occupancy and income, showed signs of improvement from its pre-refurbishment level. However there is evidence that the market is not performing as well as the Council might have hoped (commercially sensitive information in this regard has been provided in a separate briefing report to Members). Consequently Cabinet needs to consider whether the Council should take action directly itself to implement a markets improvement plan or whether it should seek a specialist third party operator to run the markets on the Council's behalf.

#### 2. Issues

- 2.1 Currently the Council runs the market directly itself on four days a week. An external licensee operates and manages a market for two days a week. The arrangement with the licensee is a long standing arrangement (that has been operating since the mid 1990's with periodic renewal of the licence period).
- 2.2 Over the past 12 months officers have been reviewing management of the market in consultation with the Portfolio Holder (and key members of Cabinet) and during this time officers have introduced software to replace the traditional paper based records as a small step towards modernising the management of the market. In addition officers have been working with the Portfolio Holder over this period of time to develop an action plan of more ambitious measures to improve the market's performance. At a summary level the key actions proposed in the improvement plan include:
  - I. Investing in the promotion of the market both to potential customers and to new traders;
  - II. Reducing the amount of cash transactions by encouraging market traders to pay their stall fees using non-cash methods;
  - III. Consideration of re-formatting the market week, for example reducing the number of days that the general market is run or by trialling different market formats that may appeal to different audiences (this action would require some market research to support its implementation);
  - IV. Updating market policies in line with modern market practices;
  - V. Closing or reformatting the farmers market;
  - VI. Introducing a 'grow your own' business support model for new start-up market traders;
  - VII. Working with the BID and other local partners to develop and promote the market for the benefit of the wider town centre;
- 2.3 In addition officers have been supporting a piece of review work being undertaken by the Economic Development & Enterprise Scrutiny Committee which is considering ways to improve the market. The aims of this review are to:
  - Find cost savings in the running of the market
  - Increase revenue generation from the market
  - Increase the volume of stall holders attending the market, which will contribute to increased revenue from the market.

At the time of writing, it is understood that the report of the Scrutiny Committee was being prepared and any final comments ought to be taken into account in any future service specification.

2.4 However the challenges around driving up performance and attractiveness of the market are considered to be much more fundamental. The main point being that the diminishing patronage of the general market is not specific to Newcastle town centre, it is consistent with the kind of challenges facing all market trading and there is a perceived need to invest in this

Classification: NULBC **PROTECT** Organisational

form of retail trading with a view to step-changing the offer to include more innovative arrangements than might be possible with a continuing management of the operation by the Council. In addition the more case-specific considerations for the market's performance in Newcastle have been set out in a confidential briefing report for members.

- 2.5 There are examples in other parts of the country where declining markets have been revitalised; this has been achieved by increasing the amount of resources and increasing the level of focus on the operation. Officers consider that if the Council does not take decisive action to revitalise the market there is a serious risk of it falling into a long term trend of decline and this will have a detrimental effect on the town centre as a shopping destination and damage the economic performance of the centre as a whole.
- 2.6 The key question is whether the Council considers it appropriate to continue with an inhouse service delivery approach, which would be charged with implementing the improvement plan summarised above or whether the Council wishes to formally explore the option of contracting out management to an external specialist operator. Officers have undertaken some soft-market testing regarding the latter and there is evidence of appetite from such operators.
- 2.7 It is anticipated that were an external specialist market operator to be appointed then it would be on the type of licence arrangement that is typically operated elsewhere. This can be summarised on the basis that the operator is given the opportunity to manage such day to day issues as trader selection, stall allocations and stall charges directly themselves. As such the Council would remove itself from the day to day running of the market once an external specialist market operator is appointed. An outcome-based specification would be prepared setting very broad objectives, as opposed to a detailed service specification approach, because this should provide any commercial operator with the greatest scope to shape the form and content of the future markets thereby improving its attractiveness and popularity.
- 2.8 Further to the latter point and in consideration of the evolving role of outdoor markets as a retail destination taken together with the potential change that a large amount of student accommodation will bring to the town centre there is potential that any externally appointed specialist market operator may, in future, wish to re-organise the market offer both in terms of the market layout and the schedule to revitalise both the vitality of the market itself and also to contribute to the vitality of the wider town centre.
- 2.9 Finally it is worth noting that the current and planned investment in and around the town centre including the above-mentioned student accommodation, the planned redevelopment of Ryecroft and the older persons' residential scheme under construction on the former Maxims site should stimulate confidence in a future market operator that there is significant opportunity to grow customer patronage of the market.

#### 3. Options Considered

#### **In-house Improvement Programme**

3.1 The Council has the option of investing resources, in terms of capital and revenue funding as well as staff time, in order to accelerate delivery of a proposed improvement programme for the market (along the lines summarised above). The key point to note is that any improvement actions need to be delivered in a timely manner to minimise the risk of the market going into an irretrievable decline. The actions proposed include those that are in line with Council initiatives; for example reducing the amount of cash handled by the Council. As such the work programme would require input from a range of internal departments. In addition support from external partners such as the BID would also be required.

Page 49

#### Seek an External Partner to Run the Market

3.2 The Council has the option of seeking an external partner to take responsibility for the dayto-day management and operation of the market. A carefully selected market operator will
have the necessary specialist knowledge to deliver this type of retail offering and provide the
necessary resources and focus to drive its success, whereas for the Council it is one of
many competing priorities within the wider service delivery programme. Additionally, a
specialist external provider would have the flexibility and resources to promote the market,
attract new traders and change the format of the market if required. The other potential
benefit for the Council is that it would remove the majority of direct costs in providing this
service, thereby contributing to the wider corporate agenda around ensuring the long term
resilience of the Council from a service and financial planning perspective.

#### 4. Proposal

- 4.1 That Members agree to an external partner being sought to operate and manage the Council's town centre Markets and that officers are authorised to both prepare a tender pack at the earliest opportunity and to take all the necessary steps to seek an external operator for the Newcastle town centre market. As part of this process an outcome-based specification would be prepared in consultation with the Portfolio Holder taking account of any comments made by the Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee.
- 4.2 That the results of the tender exercise are reported back to a later meeting of Cabinet with a view to appointing an external provider as soon as practically possible.

#### 5. Reasons for Preferred Solution

- 5.1 A private sector operator will have the specialist expertise in the delivery of this type of retail function and will be solely focused on delivery of the market rather than splitting resources across a number of priorities (as would be the case if the Council were to pursue its own improvement programme); thereby improving the prospects of achieving a viable and attractive market offer to the benefit of the town centre economy.
- 5.2 Licensing out the market will remove from the Council the majority of direct costs in delivering the market service thereby reducing the financial liabilities and improving the Council's budgetary resilience.
- 5.3 The Council does not have sufficient internal resources both within the direct market team or the support services to deliver an in-house improvements programme. The Council would therefore need to consider buying in external support however there is no budgetary provision for this. Licensing out the market will reduce time demand on internal support departments that would be needed to support an internal market improvement programme. This can be re-directed to other corporate priorities.

#### 6. Outcomes Linked to Corporate Priorities

6.1 The delivery of an effective market supports the Corporate Priorities of a Borough of Opportunity and a Co-operative council delivering high quality, community driven services.

Page 50

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

## 7. Legal and Statutory Implications

- 7.1 The Council has an ancient right to operate a market within Newcastle. This is supported by provisions within Part III of the Food Act 1984. As part of any future improvement plan it is intended to complete a review of the Market Byelaws and follow the necessary processes to get changes approved.
- 7.2 The licence period for the external licensee that currently operates the Tuesday and Thursday market expires on 31 March 2017. It will therefore be necessary to offer a limited time extension to this license to cover the period until the results of the proposed tender exercise are known.
- 7.3 It is anticipated that the staff involved in the delivery of the market service may have the right to TUPE transfer to an externally contracted market operator.

#### 8. Equality Impact Assessment

8.1 There are no identified equality issues as the improvement plan will seek to improve the service to all customers.

#### 9. Financial and Resource Implications

- 9.1 Summary-level financial and performance information has been provided in a separate briefing note to members. It is hoped that the Council will be able to not only offset risk by engaging a commercial operator but also reduce the net cost to the Council of operating and managing the markets. At this stage such information is not known; this would be reported at the next stage of the procurement process.
- 9.2 Were the Council to invest in a market improvement plan itself it would need to commit financial and staffing resources to achieve this in a timely manner. Whilst this has not been quantified precisely a key consideration is the dependency upon staff in a range of support services where there is insufficient available capacity which would mean having to buy in specialist advisors, for which there is no budgetary provision.
- 9.3 In accordance with current Council policy it is proposed that a requirement be made in any transfer of the market operation to a commercial provider such that a "Living Wage" is payable to all staff involved with the operation. This may have an adverse, albeit minor, effect on the income level which could be derived by the Council.

#### 10. Major Risks

10.1 The market is at risk of going into further decline with a potential loss of traders and resultant reduction in stall income. This would adversely affect the vitality and viability of the town centre and would be damaging to the Council's medium to long term financial resilience. It is therefore appropriate that the Council seeks to make improvements to the delivery of the market.

#### 11. Key Decision Information

11.1 It is anticipated that there would be a financial saving if the market is contracted out to an external party.

Page 51

11.2 The town centre market is in the Town ward; however market customers will be drawn from a wider area of the Borough (and beyond).

## 12. <u>Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions</u>

12.1 None directly relevant to the matters raised in this report although Members will recall the past decisions to invest in the physical improvements to the market.

### 13. List of Appendices

13.1 None.

### 14. Background Papers

14.1 None.

# Report to the *Economic Development and Enterprise* Overview and Scrutiny Committee

## 15 March 2017

# Stoke and Staffordshire Business Helpline



Report Author: Kim Graham

Job Title: Regeneration and Economic Development Manager

Email: <u>kim.graham@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk</u>

Telephone: extn 2465

#### Introduction

A request was made by the Economic Development and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a performance report relating to use of the Business Helpline by Newcastle businesses.

# **Background**

The Stoke and Staffordshire Business 111 8002 Helpline 0300 growthhub@staffordshirechambers.co.uk is the first point of contact for business support across Staffordshire. The helpline provides a central point of contact for a range of free business support which includes Start Up, Growth, Finance, Regulation, People and Contacts. The LEP Business Support Helpline provides free, expert business advice and support. Where appropriate, the Business Helpline will put callers in touch with a range of specialist advisors, programmes or funds via the Growth Hub. The service is managed by Staffordshire Chambers and is open to all businesses and start-ups, regardless of whether they are Chamber members.

#### Typical topics include:

- Starting a new business
- Growing your business
- Accessing appropriate finance and funding
- Marketing and promoting your business
- Improving productivity and increasing profitability

- Exporting and international trade
- Recruiting and employing staff
- Tackling regulation and cutting through red tape
- Enhancing environmental efficiency and business resilience
- Handling rural business issues
- Dealing with premises and land
- Learning how apprenticeships can benefit your business

The Business Helpline 0300 111 8002 is open 8.30am to 5.30pm from Monday to Friday or via e-mail growthhub@staffordshirechambers.co.uk

The Chamber actively promotes the Helpline on its website, at events and via social media. However, it relies heavily on partners to promote the service as well.

#### Questions to be addressed

How can we encourage Newcastle Businesses to access the Business Helpline to help them strengthen and grow their business?

#### **Outcomes**

After a meeting with the Business Helpline Advisor 14 September 2016 a number of ways to help our local businesses to access the helpline were suggested. Improvement areas to consider:

- Business pages more prominent on the Council website and easier access to the Business Helpline
- Distribution of the Business Helpline e-newsletter to all Cllrs, link on business pages and BID website
- Pop up banners at the Civic Offices and Guildhall
- Leaflets for all Councillors, Locality Action Partnerships, Business Centres and Industrial Parks
- Information on the digital screens at the Guildhall
- Include a feature in The Reporter
- Use our social media to help raise the profile
- Ensure our Customer Services have the Business Helpline number
- Promote through Business Boost
- One off events with partners to raise the profile of the helpline (Lymedale Business Centre 12 September)
- Invite to the BID Business Connects events
- Develop a database of our Newcastle businesses including those in rural areas

- Send out Business Helpline leaflet with business rates bills
- Small business Saturday event
- Greater focus on business development

# **Supporting Information (updated 24/02/17)**

93 Newcastle Businesses have contacted the Business Helpline since March 2016.

This compares with the following districts over the same period:

- Stafford 235
- East Staffs 93
- Staffordshire Moorlands 85
- Cannock 84
- South Staffs 59
- Lichfield 64
- Tamworth 34

#### Invited Partners/Stakeholders/Residents

A meeting took place with the Business Helpline Advisor 14 September 2016 to discuss options to increase Newcastle business contact with the Business Helpline.

#### **Constraints**

There is no financial cost to the Council as the Business Helpline is funded through external finance (Regional Growth Deal) for the whole of Stoke on Trent and Staffordshire. However, more officer time will be required to implement the range of improvement areas suggested earlier in this report.

#### Conclusions

In response to a request made by the Economic Development and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a performance report relating to use of the Business Helpline by Newcastle businesses, a meeting was arranged with the Business Helpline Advisor to discuss current uptake of the service and make improvements.

Business Helpline performance reports show that 93 Newcastle businesses have accessed the Business Helpline since March 2016, which is more than 5 other Staffordshire authorities (Cannock, Lichfield, South Staffs, Tamworth and Staffordshire Moorlands), equal to East Staffordshire and less than Stafford.

There are number of ways that we can further help our local businesses to access the helpline as detailed earlier in this report – many of these have already been implemented.

There is no financial cost to the Council but more officer time will be required to implement all the suggested improvements areas.

# Relevant Portfolio Holder(s)

Cllr John Williams, Portfolio Holder for Town Centres, Property and Business

**Local Ward Member (if applicable)** 

# **Background Materials**

Business Helpline Newsletter and Leaflets

# **Appendices**

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

**Document is Restricted** 



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

**Document is Restricted** 

